

CAMBRIDGE TECHNICALS LEVEL 3 (2016)

Examiners' report

SPORT AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY

05826-05829, 05872

Unit 3 January 2022 series

Contents

Introduction	3
Unit 3 series overview	4
Question 1 (a) (i)	5
Question 1 (a) (ii)	5
Question 1 (a) (iii)	6
Question 1 (b)	6
Question 1 (c)	7
Question 1 (d) (i)	7
Question 1 (d) (ii)	8
Question 2 (a)	8
Question 2 (b)	9
Question 2 (c)	10
Question 2 (d) (i)	11
Question 2 (d) (ii)	11
Question 3 (a) (i)	12
Question 3 (a) (ii)	12
Question 3 (b)	13
Question 4 (a)	13
Question 4 (b)	14
Question 4 (c)	15
Copyright information	15

Introduction

Our examiners' reports are produced to offer constructive feedback on candidates' performance in the examinations. They provide useful guidance for future candidates.

The reports will include a general commentary on candidates' performance, identify technical aspects examined in the questions and highlight good performance and where performance could be improved. The reports will also explain aspects which caused difficulty and why the difficulties arose, whether through a lack of knowledge, poor examination technique, or any other identifiable and explainable reason.

Where overall performance on a question/question part was considered good, with no particular areas to highlight, these questions have not been included in the report.

A full copy of the question paper and the mark scheme can be downloaded from OCR.

Would you prefer a Word version?

Did you know that you can save this PDF as a Word file using Acrobat Professional?

Simply click on File > Export to and select Microsoft Word

(If you have opened this PDF in your browser you will need to save it first. Simply right click anywhere on the page and select **Save as...** to save the PDF. Then open the PDF in Acrobat Professional.)

If you do not have access to Acrobat Professional there are a number of **free** applications available that will also convert PDF to Word (search for PDF to Word converter).

Unit 3 series overview

The quality of scripts offered in response to the January 2022 Unit 3 Sports Organisation and Development examination paper were of a similar standard to those of January 2021.

Evidence would suggest that candidates understood what was required of them throughout all four learning outcomes and there was little evidence of candidates misinterpreting questions. Overall, it was felt that candidates were well prepared for the exam.

It is pleasing to see that most candidates are now addressing the command words of 'discuss' or 'explain' in the longer answer questions, which makes it easier for them to access the higher marks.

The quality of written communication was mostly sound, although a minority of candidates still continue to write notes in bullet form which is not recommended, particularly on Question 4 (c), the 8-mark levels response question as quality of written communication is assessed in this question.

At times a lack of clearly expressed knowledge was an issue, leading to 'NBD' (No Benefit of the Doubt) being indicated on responses. This was particularly evident with Question 1 (b) on describing the roles and responsibilities of UK sport.

At the end of the question paper, there are two blank pages. Centres are asked to remind candidates to use this space if they require extra space for their answers, rather than write down the sides of the answer booklet, which potentially makes the response more difficult to read and therefore mark.

Candidates who did well on this paper generally did the following:

- made sure that they attempted all the questions
- if the question was worth 4 marks, they gave 4 answers to the question
- in the extended answer (levels question Question 4 (c)) they made sure that they showed good written communication. They clearly compared the advantages and disadvantages of hosting a national and international event
- gave answers that were clearly expressed and showed good knowledge.

Candidates who did less well on this paper generally did the following:

- had a lack of detail in their responses
- when answering the longer answer questions (e.g. Question 1 (c)) that use command words such as 'describe or explain', candidates often responded by simply identifying factors, which made it more difficult to access the higher marks
- gave too few points for the marks available for that question and then often repeated points in their response rather than being able to make separate, distinct points in relation to the question set
- in the extended answer (levels question –
 Question 4 (c)) they did not compare the
 advantages and disadvantages of hosting a
 national and international event. They simply
 gave the characteristics of both these events.

Question 1 (a) (i)

1	(a)	(i)		ch of the following is least likely to be a sports development role of National erning Bodies?	
			Plac	ce a tick (✓) in the box next to the correct answer.	
			(a)	Developing their provision according to a Whole Sport Plan.	
			(b)	Funding elite performers through the World Class Programme.	
			(c)	Setting and enforcing rules and regulations.	
			(d)	Working in partnership with Sport England.	
					[1]
•	al Gov	ernii	ng Bo	well answered. Candidates were unsure of the sports development roles obdies. Moving forwards centres need to make sure that this area of the overed.	of
Ques	stion 1	I (a) (ii)		
		(ii)		Sport and Recreation Alliance works to provide subsidised physical activity ortunities for local communities.	
			Plac	ce a tick (✓) in the box next to the correct answer.	
			True		
			Fals	se	[1]
					ניז
-				I answered. Candidates had a good understanding of the Sport and Recre	ation
Allianc	e and I	knev	w that	t it did not provide subsidised physical opportunities for local communities.	

Question 1 (a) (iii)

	(iii)	Sport England works to increase the level of lifelong participation in sport and physical activity in the UK.	
		Place a tick (✓) in the box next to the correct answer.	
		True	
		False [1	1]
		s well answered. Candidates showed a good understanding of Sport England and lifelong participation.	their
Question 2	1 (b)		
		Sport has a number of roles and responsibilities including bidding to host major ting events.	
1	Desc	cribe four other roles or responsibilities of UK Sport.	
	1		
:	2		
;	3		
•	4		
		[4	 4]
The majority	of ca	andidates managed to score 1 or 2 on this question with 'supporting athletes to ach	nieve
heir medal wonly some ca	vinnir andid	ng potential' and 'accessing high class facilities' the most common answers. Howe attes were able to give enough detail in their description to access full marks. Answerticipation' and 'they provide better facilities and coaching' were typical of the we	ver, vers

responses. Another common error was that they repeated the point that was made in the stem of the question, so candidates wrote 'bidding to host a major event'.



AfL

Moving forwards centres need to make sure that candidates are able to give both breadth and depth to their answers in order to access all the marks on these questions. This question was worth 4 marks and so required 4 answers

Question 1 (c)

(c)	One of the many aims of sports organisations in the UK is to increase participation rates in sport and physical activity.	
	Use sporting examples to describe four other aims of sports organisations in the UK.	
	[4]	

This question was answered in a very similar way to the previous question. Most candidates showed some understanding of the aims of sporting organisations in the UK and managed to score 1 or 2 marks. Typical answers included examples of 'providing sports education', e.g. they help to develop a healthy lifestyle and 'providing opportunities for competition' being the most common answers. However, very few candidates were able to give enough detail in their description to access the full 4 marks. Once again, candidates often repeated the point that was made in the stem of the question that it increases participation. It is vital that centres need to make sure that candidates can give both breadth and depth to their answers in order to access all the marks on these questions. This question was worth 4 marks and so required four answers; many candidates only gave one or two answers.

Question 1 (d) (i)

(d) Regular participation in sport and physical activity can have many long-term positive effects.

(i)	Identify two long-term effects that exercise may have on improving respiratory health and fitness.
	1

_			
2	 	 	
			[2]

This question was synoptically linked to Unit 1 and appeared very straightforward. However it was not well answered. A substantial numbers of candidates answered the question with very vague responses such as 'it helps breathing' or 'it makes you fitter', also a number of candidates wrote about the long-term effects on the cardiovascular system, not the respiratory system. Knowledge of specific long-term effects on the respiratory system was not good and full marks were only accessed by a limited number of candidates. Those candidates who did answer the question correctly typically referred to 'increased lung capacity', 'less risk of respiratory diseases' and 'it increases the strength of the respiratory muscles' in their answers.

Question 1 (d) (ii)

(ii)	Identify two long-term effects that exercise may have on improving cardiovascular health and fitness.
	1
	2 [2]

This question was also synoptically linked to Unit 1 and again appeared very straightforward. However just the like the previous question, it was not answered well, although the responses were marginally better. Again, a substantial numbers of candidates answered the question with very vague responses such as 'it makes your heart work better' or 'you have more blood'. Knowledge of specific long-term effects on the cardiovascular system was poor and full marks were only accessed by a limited number of candidates. Those candidates who did answer the question correctly typically referred to 'increased stroke volume', 'less risk of chronic heart diseases' and 'it increases the strength of the cardiac muscle' in their answers. Some candidates did refer to a decrease in heart rate but unless they mentioned decrease in resting heart rate, they were not given any marks.

Qu

ıest	uestion 2 (a)		
2	(a)	There are many important roles in sports development. For example, an official is important to enforce game rules and protect participant safety.	
		Use examples to explain three other roles in sports development.	
		Role:	
		Explanation:	
		Role:	
		Explanation:	
		Role:	
		Explanation:	
		[6]	

This was a well answered question on the paper, probably the best answered. Many candidates scored full marks. Answers showed a good understanding of the different roles in sports development and then candidates were able to give supporting examples across a wide range of answers. Where candidates were unable to score maximum marks, this was because they could not give examples to support the roles or they gave a repeated example. Very few candidates did not access marks on this question.

Question 2 (b)

(b)	In sports development, coaches should use a range of leadership styles to suit different situations.
	Use examples to describe the use of two different leadership styles in sport.
	1
	•
	2
	[2]

Candidates' responses were rather limited in this question and only a few scored maximum marks. Considering the candidates' answers, there was a noticeable lack of knowledge regarding leadership styles in sport. It is also worth noting that several candidates named the type of leadership, but mixed up the styles in their examples. Moving forward, centres need to make sure that candidates are taught the specific detail on the specification on leadership styles and understand how these styles, work in practice.

Question 2 (c)

(c)	At the higher levels of the sports development continuum, the quality of coaching, equipment and facilities available to athletes is generally better.
	Describe three other characteristics for each of the performance and excellence levels.
	Performance:
	Excellence:
	[6]

Candidates, in the main, answered this question very well and showed a good understanding of the characteristics of both the performance and excellence levels of the sports development continuum. Many candidates scored at least 3 marks on this question and a significant number scored full marks. The question asked specifically about the characteristics found at each level and it was good to see that because there were 6 marks available, candidates gave a detailed description. The candidates' answers were noticeably stronger when describing the excellence level. Where candidates did not score full marks this was often because they only gave two or three characteristics. Very few candidates did not access marks on this question.

Question 2 (d) (i)

(d)	It has been said that without the work done by sports development initiatives, few	/er
	disabled people would take part in sport.	

(i)	Explain the possible barriers to participation for disabled people.
	[5]

This question assessed candidates understanding of the barriers to sport and physical activity for the disabled. Most candidates were able to provide at least two barriers but only a few students were able to achieve maximum marks by discussing five barriers. There was a good breadth in the variety of the candidates' responses. The best answers structured their response so that it included a detailed discussion of the barriers and how these have negatively affected participation. Weaker answers were brief, list-like and only considered 1 or 2 barriers. Very few candidates did not access marks on this question.

Question 2 (d) (ii)

(ii)	As well as overcoming barriers, sports development initiatives also aim to promote positive values in participants such as sportsmanship.
	Identify two other values developed by participation in sport.
	1
	2
	[2]

The candidates' responses to this question were mixed. Where there was a clear understanding of what the word values meant, candidates were then able to access full marks. However, in contrast, other answers were often vague and showed limited specification knowledge.

Question 3 (a) (i)

3	(a) Sport England monitors a National Governing Body's impact on participation using		
		Whole Sport Plan (WS	SP) to determine future levels of funding.

(i)	Identify three factors a Whole Sport Plan could be assessed against to measure if it is successful in raising participation levels.
	1
	2
	3 [3]

Candidates had difficulty with this question. Answers were in the main often vague and in quite a few instances irrelevant. The question needed very specific answers in relation to a Whole Sport Plan and the factors it could be assessed against to measure its success. Unfortunately, candidates were often unable to provide this. Good responses included answers such as 'increased participation of target groups', 'increase in club memberships' and 'greater use of facilities'.

Question 3 (a) (ii)

(ii)	It is also important to monitor the impact sports development has on sports performance.
	Identify two methods of measuring the impact of sports development on performance.
	1
	2

This was a very straightforward question, with many candidates scoring a maximum. Knowledge of the methods used to measure sports development on performance were good. In those instances where candidates were unable to access full marks, this was because answers were vague or candidates stated incorrect measures.

Question 3 (b)

(b) Sports development providers should assess how successful their event or initiative is by its impact on society.

Complete the paragraph below using the most appropriate terms from the word bank provided.

A successful initiative such as Midnight Basketball (a late-night basketball league
open to anyone who turns up) can have a positive impact on society. It may reduce
rates due to providing positive alternatives to
activity.
It could also benefit as the initiative would require
facilities to expand their opening times. Local levels of obesity and
may also improve over time as an indirect outcome.

Antisocial	Crime	Education
Employment	Funding	Housing
Life expectancy	Poverty	Sedentary

[4]

This question was well answered with many candidates scoring maximum marks and showing a good understanding of how a successful event can impact society. Although in the third sentence some candidates were unsure about the effect, **employment** would have.

Question 4 (a)

4	(a)	Sports events can be local, regional, national, or international.	
		Identify one national event and one regional event.	
		National:	-
		Regional:	
		[2	<u>'</u>]

Candidates' understanding of what a national sporting event is was good. However, candidates' knowledge of regional events was poor, often naming a county event instead. For example, Essex County Cup in Football as opposed to a correct answer of The South East Cup competition in Football. Moving forward, centres need to make sure that candidates understand the specific detail on the specification about regional events and be able to give an example of such events.

Question 4 (b)

in sport may experience or gain.
1
2
3
4
5
[5]

(b) In addition to sporting success and fame, describe five other benefits an elite performer

The majority of candidates managed to score 2 or 3 marks on this question with 'sponsorship deals', 'being a role model' and 'being able to travel the world' as the most common answers. However, only some candidates were able to give enough detail in their description to access full marks. In addition, candidates often repeated the point that was made in the stem of the question that it increases fame. This question is worth 5 marks, centres need to make sure that candidates are able to give both breadth and depth to their answers in order to access all the marks on these questions.

Question 4 (c)

(c)*	Sports development initiatives and events can vary widely. For example, a national athletics championship is different to an international event such as the Olympic Games	3 .
	Discuss the potential advantages and disadvantages of organising and running a national event or initiative compared to an international event or initiative.	
	I	[8]
		• • •

This question assessed candidates' ability to discuss the advantages and disadvantages of organising and running a national event **compared** to an international event. Many candidates were able to provide a level 2 answer but only a few students were able to achieve a Level 3 answer and provide a balanced and detailed comparison of the two events.

The best answers structured their response so that the two events were directly compared, and the candidates gave a varied and broad discussion of possible advantages and disadvantages. Weaker answers were brief, and in the main only considered actual characteristics of the two types of events which was not asked for in the question. No real comparisons were made and only some reference to advantages or disadvantages were discussed. Very few candidates did not access marks on this question.

	AfL	Going forward it must be reiterated to centres that they must encourage candidates to read the question carefully and be able to apply their knowledge to a question rather than just 'quote' the specification. Candidates will then be rewarded by higher marks.
--	-----	---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Copyright information

Any reference to existing companies or organisations is entirely coincidental and is not intended as a depiction of those companies or organisations.

Supporting you

Review of results

If any of your students' results are not as expected, you may wish to consider one of our review of results services. For full information about the options available visit the OCR website.

Supporting you through 2021-2022

Our priority is supporting you and your students this spring and to support you as you prepare for summer 2022. We'll update our <u>website information</u> regularly with resources, guidance and key information.

Take a look at our support for:

- <u>Teachers</u>
- Students
- Exams officers

Keep up-to-date

We are sending a weekly roundup to tell you about important updates. You can also sign up for your subject specific updates. If you haven't already, sign up here.

OCR Professional Development

Attend one of our popular CPD courses to hear directly from a senior assessor or drop in to a Q&A session. All our courses for the academic year 2021-2022 are being delivered live via an online platform, so you can attend from any location.

Please find details for all our courses on the relevant subject page on our <u>website</u> or visit <u>OCR professional development</u>.

Signed up for Exambuilder?

ExamBuilder is the question builder platform for a range of our GCSE, A Level, Cambridge Nationals, Cambridge Technicals and Functional Skills qualifications. See the full list of available qualifications in the sign up form.

ExamBuilder is **free for all OCR centres** with an Interchange account and gives you unlimited users per centre. We need an Interchange username to validate the identity of your centre's first user account for ExamBuilder.

If you do not have an Interchange account please contact your centre administrator (usually the Exams Officer) to request a username, or nominate an existing Interchange user in your department.

Supporting you

Active Results

Review students' exam performance with our free online results analysis tool.

For the spring 2022 series, results analysis is available for Cambridge Nationals (moderated units) only.

It allows you to:

- review and run analysis reports on exam performance
- analyse results at question and/or topic level
- compare your centre with OCR national averages
- · identify trends across the centre
- facilitate effective planning and delivery of courses
- identify areas of the curriculum where students excel or struggle
- help pinpoint strengths and weaknesses of students and teaching departments.

Find out more at ocr.org.uk/activeresults.

Need to get in touch?

If you ever have any questions about OCR qualifications or services (including administration, logistics and teaching) please feel free to get in touch with our customer support centre.

Call us on

01223 553998

Alternatively, you can email us on **support@ocr.org.uk**

For more information visit

- □ ocr.org.uk/qualifications/resource-finder
- ocr.org.uk
- **6** /ocrexams
- **y** /ocrexams
- display="block" company/ocr" [additional company/ocr"]
- /ocrexams

We really value your feedback

Click to send us an autogenerated email about this resource. Add comments if you want to. Let us know how we can improve this resource or what else you need. Your email address will not be used or shared for any marketing purposes.





Please note – web links are correct at date of publication but other websites may change over time. If you have any problems with a link you may want to navigate to that organisation's website for a direct search.



OCR is part of Cambridge University Press & Assessment, a department of the University of Cambridge.

For staff training purposes and as part of our quality assurance programme your call may be recorded or monitored. © OCR 2022 Oxford Cambridge and RSA Examinations is a Company Limited by Guarantee. Registered in England. Registered office The Triangle Building, Shaftesbury Road, Cambridge, CB2 8EA. Registered company number 3484466. OCR is an exempt charity.

OCR operates academic and vocational qualifications regulated by Ofqual, Qualifications Wales and CCEA as listed in their qualifications registers including A Levels, GCSEs, Cambridge Technicals and Cambridge Nationals.

OCR provides resources to help you deliver our qualifications. These resources do not represent any particular teaching method we expect you to use. We update our resources regularly and aim to make sure content is accurate but please check the OCR website so that you have the most up to date version. OCR cannot be held responsible for any errors or omissions in these resources.

Though we make every effort to check our resources, there may be contradictions between published support and the specification, so it is important that you always use information in the latest specification. We indicate any specification changes within the document itself, change the version number and provide a summary of the changes. If you do notice a discrepancy between the specification and a resource, please contact us.

You can copy and distribute this resource freely if you keep the OCR logo and this small print intact and you acknowledge OCR as the originator of the resource.

OCR acknowledges the use of the following content: N/A

 $Whether you already offer OCR qualifications, are new to OCR or are thinking about switching, you can request more information using our \underline{\text{Expression of Interest form}}.$

Please get in touch if you want to discuss the accessibility of resources we offer to support you in delivering our qualifications.